
Agenda 
 

City of Lucas  
Parks and Open Space Board Meeting  

January 23, 2018  
7:00 PM 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas 
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the City of Lucas Parks & Open Space Board Meeting will be held on January 
23, 2018 at 7:00 pm at the Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas at which time the following agenda 
will be discussed. As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Parks & Open Space Board 
many convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City 
Attorney on any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 

Call to Order 
 

• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum 
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 

Regular Agenda 
 
1. Appoint Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Parks and Open Space Board to serve for a 

period of one (1) year with a term ending December 31, 2018. (City Secretary Stacy 
Henderson)  

 
2. Consider approving the minutes of the October 24, 2017 Parks and Open Space Board 

meeting. (City Secretary Stacy Henderson)  
 
3. Review the Parks and Open Space Board 2018 Planning Calendar and establish a regular 

meeting schedule. (City Manager Joni Clarke, Councilmember Tim Baney)  
 
4. Provide update regarding the 2018 Founders Day event. (Special Projects Coordinator Cathey 

Bonczar)  
 
5. Discuss details of the Keep Lucas Beautiful Spring clean-up event proposed for May 12, 

2018. (Special Projects Coordinator Cathey Bonczar)  
 
6. Provide update regarding the 2017 Scarecrow Contest and determine if the Scarecrow 

Contest should remain as part of the 2018 Parks Board projects. (Parks Board Member Ken 
Patterson)  

 
7. Consider applying for the Tree City USA certification in 2018.  (Special Projects 

Coordinator Cathey Bonczar) 
 
8. Provide update regarding park improvements to the Lucas Community Park, East 

Winningkoff Trailhead, Kenneth R. Lewis Park, and Forest Creek Park. (Development 
Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
9. Adjournment. 



Certification 
I hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin 
board at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002-7651 and on the City’s website at 
www.lucastexas.us by 5:00 p.m. on or before January 19, 2018. 
 

____________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 
 

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable 
accommodations for persons attending public meetings at City Hall.  Requests for accommodations or interpretive 
services should be directed to Stacy Henderson at 972-912-1211 or by email at shenderson@lucastexas.us at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Item No. 01 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson  

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space Board Request 

January 23, 2018 

Agenda Item:   
 
Appoint Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Parks and Open Space Board to serve for a period 
of one (1) year with a term ending December 31, 2018. 
                                     
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
 Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA  
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to appoint ________________ as Chairman of the Parks and Open Space Board 
for a one-year period with a term ending December 31, 2018. 
 
I make a motion to appoint ________________ as Vice Chairman of the Parks and Open Space 
Board for a one-year period with a term ending on December 31, 2018.  
 
 
 
 

 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson  

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space Board Request 

January 23, 2018 

Agenda Item:   
 
Consider approving the minutes of the October 24, 2017 Parks and Open Space Board meeting.  
                                     
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
 Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. October 24, 2017 Parks and Open Space Board minutes   
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to approve the minutes of the October 24, 2017 Parks and Open Space Board 
meeting.  
 
 

 



Parks and Open Space Board Meeting 
October 24, 2017  Page 1
   

              
 

 
 

Parks and Open Space Board Meeting 
October 24, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 
City Hall – 665 Country Club Road 

Minutes 
 

Call to Order 
 
Chairman Rhoads called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.  
 
Parks Board Members Present: 
Chairman David Rhoads 
Vice Chairman Chris Vanhorn 
Member Kenneth Patterson 
Member Bill Esposito 
Member Brenda Rizos  

Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke  
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
 
 

 
Chairman Rhoads determined that a quorum was present and reminded all in attendance to silence 
their cell phones. The Board conducted the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Regular Agenda 
 

1. Consider approval of the minutes of the September 26, 2017 Parks and Open Space 
Board regular meeting.  

 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Mr. Patterson, seconded by Mr. Esposito to approve the 

minutes as presented.  The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote.  
 
2. Consider scheduling assigned updates to the Parks Board Prioritization Task List.  
 
The following schedule was outlined by the Parks and Open Space Board to discuss updates 
pertaining to the below mentioned projects:  
 
Project Member Assigned  Update Assigned  
Park Improvements (Community Park, Kenneth Lewis 
Park, Forest Creek Neighborhood Park) 

David Rhoads/ 
Joe Hilbourn  

January  

Founders Day David Rhoads  January  
Keep Lucas Beautiful Spring Cleanup Event Bill Esposito January  



Parks and Open Space Board Meeting 
October 24, 2017  Page 2
   

Scarecrow Event Ken Patterson  January  
First Trail Segment from Willow Springs to Stinson 
Road 

Chris Vanhorn  February  

Tree City USA  Cathey Bonczar February  
Texas Arbor Day  Bill Esposito  March  
Annually Review of the Comp Plan, Park Rules and 
Park Fees 

Ken Patterson April  

Keep Lucas Beautiful Fall Cleanup Event  Bill Esposito July  

Keep Texas Beautiful Annual Conference  Cathey Bonczar/  
Bill Esposito 

July  

Country Christmas  Joe Hilbourn October  
Educational Seminars for Lucas Residents Chris Vanhorn  As Needed 
East Winningkoff Trail Head Brenda Rizos As Needed  
Adopt a Highway Joni Clarke  As Needed  
Expansion of Lucas Community Park (project is not 
funded)  

Joe Hilbourn  As Needed  

 
3. Discuss participating in a Lake Lavon Cleanup event. 
 
Ms. Rizos stated that the contact for the Lake Lavon Cleanup Group was David Grote and he was 
given the Development Services Directors contact information.  Mr. Grote is aware of the City’s 
Arbor Day event on November 4, and the Lake Lavon Cleanup Group may want to take part in the 
City’s various cleanup events throughout the year.  Ms. Rizos stated that Mr. Grote will be 
contacting the City regarding assistance with future events.  
 
4. Update on the East Winningkoff Trailhead project.  
 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn reminded the Board that the grand opening for the 
East Winningkoff Trailhead was scheduled for Saturday, October 28 at 8:00 am, with a trailhead 
after the grand opening.  
 
5. Adjournment. 
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Ms. Rizos, seconded by Mr. Patterson to adjourn the meeting 

at 7:58 pm.  The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote.  
 
 
 
APPROVE:       ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 
David Rhoads, Chairman    Stacy Henderson, City Secretary  



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 

Requester:  Councilmember Tim Baney  
City Manager Joni Clarke  
 

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space Board Request 

January 23, 2018 

Agenda Item:   
 
Review the Parks and Open Space Board 2018 Planning Calendar and establish a regular 
meeting schedule. 
                                     
Background Information:  
 
At the January 4, 2018 City Council meeting, board member appointments were made to the 
Parks and Open Space Board.  Also during that meeting, Parks and Open Space Board 
prioritization projects were discussed along with meeting schedules. A planning calendar has 
been prepared outlining the Parks and Open Space Board projects based on a quarterly meeting 
schedule. 
  
Project Member  

Assigned  
Update  
Assigned  

Planning 
Calendar 

Park Improvements (Community 
Park, Kenneth Lewis Park, Forest 
Creek Neighborhood Park) 

David Rhoads/ 
Joe Hilbourn  

January  January 

Founders Day David Rhoads  January  January 
Keep Lucas Beautiful Spring Cleanup 
Event 

Bill Esposito January  January 

Scarecrow Event Ken Patterson  January  January 

Tree City USA  Cathey Bonczar February  January (update) 
October (action) 

First Trail Segment from Willow 
Springs to Stinson Road 

Chris Vanhorn  February  April 

Texas Arbor Day  Bill Esposito  March  April 
Annually Review of the Comp Plan, 
Park Rules and Park Fees 

Ken Patterson April  April 

Keep Lucas Beautiful Fall Cleanup 
Event  

Bill Esposito July  July 

Keep Texas Beautiful Annual 
Conference  

Cathey Bonczar/  
Bill Esposito 

July  April 
July (recap) 

Country Christmas  Joe Hilbourn October  October 
Educational Seminars for Lucas 
Residents 

Chris Vanhorn  As Needed N/A 

East Winningkoff Trail Head Brenda Rizos 
(Note 1) 

As Needed  N/A 

Adopt a Highway Joni Clarke  As Needed  N/A 
Expansion of Community Park 
(project is not funded)  

Joe Hilbourn  As Needed  N/A 

 
Note 1:  Since Ms. Rizos has resigned from the Parks and Open Space Board, staff will manage this project. 
 



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 

Requester:  Councilmember Tim Baney  
City Manager Joni Clarke  
 

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space Board Request 

January 23, 2018 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Parks Board 2018 Planning Calendar  
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny the establishment 2018 meeting schedule for the Parks and 
Open Space Board for April 24, July 24 and October 23 noting that the Chairman, City Manager 
or four board members may call special meetings. 
 

 



Parks Board Planning Calendar 
2018 

 

Parks and Open Space Board Meeting 
January 23, 2018 

Agenda Item No. Staff Member Item Requested 
  Founders Day  
  KLB Spring Cleanup Event  
  Scarecrow event recap  
  Tree city USA  
  Park improvements (Community Park, Kenneth R Lewis, 

Forest Creek neighborhood 
  Discuss meeting schedule and Parks Board duties 

 

 

Parks and Open Space Board Meeting 
April 24, 2018 

Agenda Item No. Staff Member Item Requested 
  Annual review of comp plan, park rules and fees  
  Texas Arbor Day  
  First Trail Segment from Willow springs to Stinson  
  KTB Annual Conference (June 11-13, 2018) 

 

 

Parks and Open Space Board Meeting 
July 24, 2018 

Agenda Item No. Staff Member Item Requested 
  KLB Fall cleanup event  
  KTB Annual Conference - recap 

 

 

Parks and Open Space Board Meeting 
October 23, 2018 

Agenda Item No. Staff Member Item Requested 
  Country Christmas  
  Tree City  

 



Item No. 04 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Special Projects Coordinator Cathey Bonczar  

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space Board Request 

January 23, 2018 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Provide update regarding the 2018 Founders Day event.  
 
Background Information:  
 
Founders Day is scheduled for Saturday, April 14, 2018 from 12:00 pm to 4:00 pm at the Lucas 
Community Park located next to City Hall at 665 Country Club Road.  The planning has begun, 
and the committee is working on securing contracts, identifying vendors, detailing maps, and 
lining up activities.   
 
Favorites such as the stick horse rodeo and the parade will again be part of the fun, and this year 
we are adding to the excitement with a Pony Hop event, an obstacle course, a photo booth, and 
more.  
 
Our fresh new spring approach will include a focus on beautification of our city, sustainable 
landscape practices, water conservation, and litter abatement. We are accepting booth 
applications from craft vendors wishing to sell homemade items, and groups looking to promote 
their school, church, or small business. We are also accepting parade applications for those 
wishing to pre-register.   
  
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 
 



Item No. 05 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Requester: Special Projects Coordinator Cathey Bonczar  

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space Board Request 

January 23, 2018 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Discuss details of the Keep Lucas Beautiful Spring clean-up event proposed for May 12, 2018.  
 
Background Information:  
 
The event begins and ends at the Community Park pavilion next to City Hall.  Participants will 
gather at 8:00 a.m., pick up safety vests and trash bags, review safety guidelines, and be assigned 
to a route. Volunteers will then be dropped off at their assigned location and when done, will be 
picked up and brought back to the Community Park.  Lunch will be provided at the end of the 
event.    
 
Areas that will be identified for cleanup will be decided closer to the actual date of the event.   
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 
 



Item No. 06 
 
 
 
 

 
Requester: Parks Board Member Ken Patterson 

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space Board Request 

January 23, 2018 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Provide update regarding the 2017 Scarecrow Contest and determine if the Scarecrow Contest 
should remain as part of the 2018 Parks Board projects.  
 
Background Information:  
 
The Scarecrow Contest was implemented in 2015 with a total of 16 entries the first year.  In 2016, 
the City received a total of 12 scarecrow entries, and in 2017 the City received a total of five 
entries.  In 2017, one grand prize winner was chosen, given the minimal number of participants.  
 
Staff needs to receive direction from the Board regarding this project.  
 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Scarecrow entries.  
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 



1/18/2018 1

City Of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space Board

Scarecrow Yearbook 2017



Entry Number One

We Flip for Legacy 4H

1/18/2018 2



Entry Number  Two

Magda

1/18/2018 3



Entry Number  Three

Porch Time In the Fall

1/18/2018 4



Entry Number  Four

Husker Fan 4 Life

1/18/2018 5



Entry Number  Five

Ezekiel “Zeke” in the Yard

1/18/2018 6



Item No. 07 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Special Projects Coordinator Cathey Bonczar   

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space Board Request 

January 23, 2018 
 

 

Agenda Item:   
 

Consider applying for the Tree City USA certification in 2018.   
 
Background Information:  
 

In 2017, the City began gathering data to make application for the Tree City USA certification.  
Special Projects Coordinator Cathey Bonczar spoke with the Tree City USA contact Gretchen 
Riley with the Texas A&M Forest Service for guidance on the City’s application. While the City 
was strong in several aspects of the application requirements, there were some areas where the 
City would fall short of qualifying. Given these findings, the City did not apply in 2017. The 
application window to apply for certification in 2018 is from September – December, and all 
data submitted must be from the qualifying year.   
 
Areas where the City was strong in 2017: 

• Budget requirements  
• Arbor Day Proclamation  
• Holding the Arbor Day observance and giving away trees, and having Texas Pure and the 

Collin County Master Gardeners on site to promote proper tree care 
 
Changes that would be needed in order to make a successful application in 2018 include: 

• A tree care ordinance that specifically addresses public tree care 
• An Urban Forester or someone with the certification who holds a different position 
• CEU credits obtained for current year  
• Work plan showing tasks/projects in work or completed, and regularly scheduled tasks  

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

• Sample Public Tree Care Ordinance 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 

NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 

NA 
 
Motion:  
 

I make a motion to approve/deny applying for the Tree City USA certification in 2018.   











Item No. 08 
 
 
 
 

 
Requester: Development Services Director Joseph Hilbourn 
 

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space Board Request 

January 23, 1018  
 

Agenda Item:   
 
Provide update regarding park improvements to the Lucas Community Park, East Winningkoff 
Trailhead, Kenneth R. Lewis Park, and Forest Creek Park.  
 
Background Information:  
 
The list below outlines proposed improvements and their status for each of the following 
projects:  
 
Lucas Community Park:  
1. Install split rail fence east of restrooms adjacent to the parking lot – Completed. 
2. Dig out, remove dead and overgrown landscape throughout - Dead and over grown 

landscape has been removed and or trimmed back, and plantings for this project and will 
be installed immediately following Founders Day.  
 

East Winningkoff Trailhead: 
1. Add split rail fence to terminate near existing drive by water tower, and add landscape area 

at end of fence - Fence has been ordered and will be installed prior to Founders Day by 
public works staff. The landscape will be installed immediately following Founders Day. 

2. Add round pen – Not yet started. 
 
Kenneth R Lewis Park: 
1. Repair drainage south side – Completed. 
2. Backfill under side walks around culverts and plantings from erosion – Completed. 
3. Clean up existing scoreboard sign - Sent out for bid.  
4. Repair Kenneth R Lewis Sign - Design completed and will install as time permits. 
5. Underside of pavilion - Sent out for bid, prices came in too high at $17,000.  This project will 

be going out for rebidding.  
6. Clean and paint dugouts - Sent for bid. 
7. Landscape repair and replacement -  This project will be completed after Founders Day. 

 
Forest Creek Park: 
1. Replace Pavilion - Pavilion has been removed, waiting for bid to replace. 
2. Trim tree line and clear under brush – Completed. 
3. Replace existing hose bib with frost free standing hose bib – Will be replaced as time permits. 
4. Paint Swing sets - Sent out for bid. 
5. Clean up playground equipment – Equipment will be clean when weather permits. 
6. Plant trees and landscape - Will be done immediately after Founders Day. 
7. Volleyball court or basketball court – This project has not been started. 



Item No. 08 
 
 
 
 

 
Requester: Development Services Director Joseph Hilbourn 
 

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space Board Request 

January 23, 1018  
 

8. Remove edging around playground equipment and add landing mulch around equipment - Will 
be done immediately following restoration of equipment and painting swing set.  

9. Benches (4), Picnic tables (2), Soccer goals (2) – These items will be purchased when other 
park items are close to completion.  

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA  
 


	00 - 01-23-18 regular agenda
	Agenda
	City of Lucas
	Parks and Open Space Board Meeting
	January 23, 2018
	7:00 PM
	City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas
	Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the City of Lucas Parks & Open Space Board Meeting will be held on January 23, 2018 at 7:00 pm at the Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas at which time the following agenda will be discussed. A...
	Call to Order
	Regular Agenda
	Certification



	01 - Appoint Chairman and Vice Chairman cs
	02 - Minutes cs
	02a - 10-24-2017 POS minutes
	Parks and Open Space Board Meeting
	October 24, 2017
	7:00 p.m.
	City Hall – 665 Country Club Road
	Minutes
	Call to Order
	Regular Agenda


	03 - Calendar-meeting schedule
	03a - Parks Board Meeting Schedule 2018
	03b - Project Prioritization List - Final
	Prioritization Sept 2017

	04 - Founders Day event  cs
	05 - Clean up event  cs
	06 - Scarecrow Contest
	06a - Scarecrow Yearbook  Class of 2017
	Slide Number 1
	Entry Number One�We Flip for Legacy 4H
	Entry Number  Two�Magda
	Entry Number  Three�Porch Time In the Fall
	Entry Number  Four�Husker Fan 4 Life
	Entry Number  Five�Ezekiel “Zeke” in the Yard

	07 - Tree city  cs
	07a - Sample Public Tree Care Ordinance
	08- Parks Update agenda request

